
    4640 Barger Drive    Eugene, OR 97402    Phone: (541) 689-3280     
   Fax: (541) 689-0719    www.bethel.k12.or.us 

 
  
 

 
 

 
 

BETHEL SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
Hybrid Meeting hosted from Meadow View School – South Media Center – 1855 Legacy Drive  

Monday, December 11, 2023 – 6:30 p.m.  
Join Zoom: 

https://bethel-k12-or-
us.zoom.us/j/83179364175?pwd=MDV0NXNUOUtRTnhDTTQrSzBVVW52dz09 

Passcode:  618805 
Or 

Phone number to listen:  1.253.215.8782 
Webinar ID:  831 7936 4175 

Passcode:  618805 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. Call to Order Robin Zygaitis, Chair 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3.    Approval of Minutes  
 
4.    School Presentation:  Meadow View School 
 
5. Student Representative Reports:  KHS and WHS  
  
6. Delegations and Visitors 
 Public comment will be taken in-person, via Zoom, or in writing.  

• For in-person comments, please complete the Intent to Speak card prior to the start of the board 
meeting. 

• For comments via Zoom, please complete this form prior to the start of the board meeting. 
• Written comments to the board can be submitted anytime at publiccomment@bethel.k12.or.us. Board 

members will have access to written public comments submitted by noon the day of the board 
meeting. 

 
7. Superintendent’s Report 

A. Financial Statement:  Andrea Belz 
B. Student Investment Account Report 
C. Upbeat Report 
D. Superintendent’s Update 
E.  

 
8. Consent Agenda  
 Personnel Action Resolution No. 15 
 
 

http://www.bethel.k12.or.us/
https://bethel-k12-or-us.zoom.us/j/83179364175?pwd=MDV0NXNUOUtRTnhDTTQrSzBVVW52dz09
https://bethel-k12-or-us.zoom.us/j/83179364175?pwd=MDV0NXNUOUtRTnhDTTQrSzBVVW52dz09
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSdNS7LFGld3DMb2a-EgPTHaNv-zoB0W2vrTf660oYN2RbL_ug/viewform?usp=sf_link
mailto:publiccomment@bethel.k12.or.us


 
 
9. Action Items                                                                                                                                 
 A.  Yes/No/Abstain OSBA Board of Directors Position 6 Resolution No. 16 
 B.    Yes/No/Abstain OSBA Legislative Policy Committee Position 6 Resolution No. 17 
 C. Yes/No/Abstain OSBA Resolution 1 – Create Rural School Board Members Caucus Resolution No. 18 
  and designate a seat on the OSBA Board of Directors and Legislative Policy Committee 
 D. Yes/No/Abstain Resolution 2 – Adopt proposed amendments to OSBA Bylaws Resolution No. 19 
 E. 
 
10. Information and Discussion  
 A. NSBA 2024 Conference, April 6-8, New Orleans 
 B. 
 
11. Board Activity Update  
 A.  
 
12.  Review of Next Meeting:  Monday, January 8, 2024 – District Office 

A. Student Representative Reports:  KHS and WHS 
B. Fall Sports Review:  Bill Wagner 
C. Review Budget Calendar:  Andrea Belz 
D. Budget Committee Openings and Timelines 
E. Superintendent’s Update 
F. Board Policies up for periodic review 
G.  

 
13. Adjournment 
 



MINUTES  
BETHEL SCHOOL DISTRICT #52  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OCTOBER 23, 2023 

1 of 6  
  

 
The October 23, 2023 meeting of the Board of Directors was held in the Media Center at Malabon Elementary 
School and was remotely accessible via Zoom Webinar.   
 
ATTENDANCE  
Board Members:  Ashley Espinoza, Debi Farr, Caleb Clark, Curt Nordling, Paul Jorgensen, Drae Charles, and 
Chair, Robin Zygaitis 
 
Absent:  None 

 
District staff and presenters:  Superintendent Sproles, Remie Calalang, Alisha Dodds, Nathan Bridgens, 
Malabon students, Caleb McKenzie, Brandee Yale, Amy Van Dyke, Dan Hedberg, Stefan Aumack, Andrea Belz, 
Jill Robinson-Wolgamott, and Jill Busby  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Zygaitis called the October 23, 2023 meeting of the Board of Directors to order at 6:32 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Director Jorgensen led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ACTION ON MINUTES 
Chair Zygaitis presented the Minutes from the October 9, 2023 Board Meeting and asked for additions or 
corrections. Hearing none, the Board approved the Minutes as submitted. 
 
Director Charles arrived at approximately 6:35 p.m. 
 
SCHOOL PRESENTATION:  MALABON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
Malabon Elementary School Principal Nathan Bridgens shared how cooking classes at Malabon are creating 
engagement, belonging, and connection, and how they align to Bethel’s mission of creating relevant, 
responsive, and joyful learning communities where students thrive. Bethel Nutrition Services staff Brandee 
Yale and Amy Van Dyke, who lead Malabon’s cooking classes, introduced themselves and described the 
program. Mr. Bridgens shared photos from Ms. Jensen’s kindergarten class which highlighted an apple theme 
for the month of September. Malabon 4th Grade Teacher Caleb McKenzie provided information on grant 
funding for the cooking classes and introduced 4th grade students who shared pickle recipes and highlights 
from their cooking class. The Board commented and thanked staff and students for their presentation. 
 
OATH OF OFFICE 
Willamette High School Principal Dan Hedberg and Kalapuya High School Principal Stefan Aumack introduced 
Jada Iheanyi-Igwe and Meztly Romero, respectively. Superintendent Sproles welcomed Meztly and Jada who 
took the oath and were officially sworn in by Chair Zygaitis as Student Representatives to the Board of 
Directors for the 2023-24 school year. 
 
Jada and Meztly introduced themselves. 
 



MINUTES  
BETHEL SCHOOL DISTRICT #52  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OCTOBER 23, 2023 

2 of 6  
  

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORTS:  KHS AND WHS 
WHS Student Representative Report:  Jada Iheanyi-Igwe 
Jada commented on the recent No Place for Hate event that took place at Willamette and included both high 
school and middle school students. A group of leadership students has been designated to create a No Place 
for Hate video to distribute to teachers. Last week juniors and seniors had the opportunity to either attend a 
college fair or remain on campus to explore other post high school opportunities. The Willamette boys soccer 
team is the 2023 Southwest Conference champion team and will compete in a playoff game at 5:00 p.m. this 
coming Saturday at Wolverine Stadium. SBLive Sports has recognized Willamette student Carlos Ariel de Dios 
Cruz as one of the best boys soccer players in the nation. This coming Wednesday a Unified Sports soccer 
game will take place at Wolverine Stadium at 6:00 p.m. Speech and Debate participation is strong and team 
members have been recognized during school announcements. The National Honor Society is hosting a Cans 
for Candy event tomorrow to benefit Food for Lane County. Leadership students are looking into improving 
Willamette’s clothing closet and food pantry and are hoping to increase accessibility and visibility of the 
clothing closet and food pantry for students.  
 
KHS Student Representative Report:  Meztly Romero 
Meztly thanked the Board for the opportunity to power her voice and shared that she and two other students 
had the opportunity to attend the 16th Annual Northwest Teaching for Social Justice Conference in Portland 
last weekend. During the conference Meztly and her peers presented on how it felt learning the Oregon Trail 
lesson as students in the classroom. They had the opportunity to meet author Renee Watson and hear her 
speak at the conference. Last weekend several Kalapuya students worked with Beyond Toxics on outdoor 
garden sessions and mural making. One of Kalapuya’s cohorts is taking a 3-day field trip to Columbia Gorge to 
learn about tribal sovereignty. The same cohort will be presenting and teaching Tribal History Shared History 
to elementary students in the District. Kalapuya’s science-based cohort is learning how students’ beliefs and 
needs change how they learn science. This cohort will be leading 3rd grade students on field trips at the Bethel 
Farm and will also be picking and selling peppers as a fundraiser for Kalapuya programs. Language Arts based 
classes recently finished a book by a local author about Iran. Students recently analyzed and built resumes 
during career week. The senior cohort is learning personal finance, employability skills, and participating in job 
shadows, and recently partnered with NW Community Credit Union business leaders for mock interviews. 
Meztly also reported on the progress of Kalapuya’s CTE building, shared that students recently participated in 
a free climbing night at Elevation Bouldering Gym, and inquired about meeting students’ behavioral support 
needs, accessing resources to help, and assisting students with expressing their ideas and concerns to the 
community. 
 
The Board thanked Jada and Meztly for their presentations.  
 
DELEGATIONS AND VISITORS 
None 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
Financial Statement:  Andrea Belz 
Business Services Director Andrea Belz reviewed the September 2023 financial statement showing an 
estimated ending fund balance of $9,744,901. Ms. Belz reported that despite District enrollment projections 
being slightly lower than anticipated, there was a change in the statewide average daily membership weight 
due to less students enrolled across the state which increased the amount districts receive per student. While 



MINUTES  
BETHEL SCHOOL DISTRICT #52  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OCTOBER 23, 2023 

3 of 6  
  

this adjustment improves revenue projections, the District will still need to spend down its ending fund 
balance. Ms. Belz and Superintendent Sproles answered questions from the Board and discussed the decline 
in student enrollment in the District and across the state.  
 
2023-2024 Supplemental Budget:  Andrea Belz 
Business Services Director Andrea Belz described that the Supplemental Budget is an adjustment to the 
Adopted Budget and referred to Resolution No. 23-24: 13 which itemizes the revised appropriations. The 
Supplemental Budget that will be before the Board for consideration during the Action Items portion of the 
Board meeting reflects changes to the following grants:  Student Investment Account, High School Success, 
and Early Indicator and Intervention System. Ms. Belz reported on the changes and shared how additional 
funding will be allocated. The Board discussed the revised appropriations. Ms. Belz and Superintendent 
Sproles answered questions from the Board.  
 
Board Stipend discussion - continued:  Robin Zygaitis 
Board Chair Zygaitis reminded the Board that it was agreed upon to revisit the Board stipend discussion 
during this meeting and shared that the Ethics Commission declared that it is a conflict of interest for Board 
members to vote on their own stipends. Board Chair Zygaitis shared options for the Board and stated that it 
was suggested districts wait until the Legislature amends the law to discuss stipends. The Board agreed to 
continue this discussion after clear guidelines are established. With the timeline being extended, Director 
Charles noted that if possible, the Board might consider retroactive stipends.  
 
Superintendent’s Update 
Superintendent Sproles reviewed the key performance indicator (KPI) data reporting schedule for upcoming 
Board meetings. Directors Charles and Farr inquired about tracking racialized, sexualized, homophobic, and 
transphobic incidents and establishing a data dashboard. Superintendent Sproles described tracking 
constraints in the District’s reporting system. The Board brainstormed ideas and discussed tracking incidents 
with racialized, sexualized, homophobic, and transphobic elements. The Board agreed that Superintendent 
Sproles will look into using key words in the District’s referral system for possible searches, meet with 
students for their feedback, and ask Bethel Health Center Director Brooke Cottle if it’s possible to track the 
percentage of students reporting these types of incidents. This KPI data will be reported separately at the 
February 12th Board meeting. Superintendent Sproles will report on student feedback at the November 13th 
Board meeting if he is able to meet with students before then. 
 
Chair Zygaitis called a recess at 8:14 p.m. 
 
Chair Zygaitis reconvened the meeting at 8:20 p.m. 
 
Division 22 Standards:  Jill Robinson-Wolgamott 
Director of Teaching and Learning Jill Robinson-Wolgamott shared an overview of the Division 22 Standards 
reporting requirements for the 2022-23 school year. The District is in compliance in all areas for the 2022-23 
school year with the exception of the PE minutes requirements for grades K-5 and 6-8. Ms. Robinson-
Wolgamott reviewed Corrective Active Plans to increase PE minutes for compliance, shared an overview of 
revised rules and requirements for compliance with Division 22 Standards for the 2023-24 school year, and 
answered questions from the Board. 



MINUTES  
BETHEL SCHOOL DISTRICT #52  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OCTOBER 23, 2023 

4 of 6  
  

 
 
Superintendent Sproles shared that Willamette High School Principal Dan Hedberg who was listening to the 
meeting remotely communicated that Leadership students are surveying Willamette students on Thursday 
and one of the questions on the survey is “How would you like to report hate based incidents?” 
Superintendent Sproles will report back to the Board on how students respond.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Resolution No. 11 – Personnel Action  
Motion:  Debi Farr moved, Ashley Espinoza seconded, to approve the Consent Agenda as specified below. The 
Board commented positively on Mr. Flick returning to Bethel temporarily as Interim Principal at Prairie 
Mountain. 

Motion Passed, 7-0 
Absent:  None 
 
 
 

# Name Type Description 
1. Boorman, Christina Hire for 2023-24 Offer Extra Duty Contract for Middle 

School Vocal Director @Cascade; start 
date: 8/28/2023. 

2. Bostwick, Debi Additional Temporary 
Hours for 2023-24 

Offer Temporary Contract from 
10/1/2023 through 2/1/2024 for 
additional .5 FTE Student Services 
Instructional Coach @District Office; 
Total: 1.0 FTE. 

3. Cook, Stacy Hire for 2023-24 Offer Extra Duty Contract for Yearbook 
Advisor @Prairie Mountain; start date: 
8/28/2023. 

4. Flick, Brian Temporary Hire for 
2023-24 

Offer Temporary Administrator 
Contract from 10/2/2023 through 
12/31/2023 for K-8 Principal @Prairie 
Mountain; Replaces: Jaime Noack; 
Education: BA/UO, MA/UO; Experience: 
31 Years at Bethel, 13 years/Teacher, 18 
years/Administrator. 

5. Larsen, Alex Temporary Hire for 
2023-24 

Offer 2nd Year Temporary Contract for 
1.0 FTE Therapeutic Behavior Classroom 
Teacher @Meadow View; Start date: 
10/9/2023. 

6. Warden, Lynne Hire for 2023-24 Offer 1st Year Probationary Contract for 
1.0 FTE Special Education Teacher 
@Prairie Mountain; Start date: 
10/12/2023. 



MINUTES  
BETHEL SCHOOL DISTRICT #52  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OCTOBER 23, 2023 

5 of 6  
  

 
ACTION ITEMS 
Resolution No. 12 – Adopt Policy GCL 
Motion:  Caleb Clark moved, Paul Jorgensen seconded, to adopt the following Board Policy: 
GCL – Staff Development 
 Motion Passed, 7-0 
Absent:  None 
 
Resolution No. 13 – Adopt 2023-2024 Supplemental Budget 
Motion:  Curt Nordling moved, Ashley Espinoza seconded, to adopt the supplemental budget for the 2023-
2024 fiscal year. (See Resolution No. 23-24: 13 for details.) 
 Motion Passed, 7-0 
Absent:  None 
 
INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION 
A. OSBA 2023 Annual Convention, November 10-11, Portland Marriott Downtown Waterfront Hotel. The 

Board discussed details related to the upcoming OSBA Annual Convention. 
B. NSBA 2024 Conference, April 6-8, New Orleans. The Board discussed the possibility of attending the NSBA 

2024 Conference. Superintendent Sproles will provide a cost estimate for the Board to attend. 
 

 BOARD ACTIVITY UPDATE 
A. Director Espinoza shared that she and Director Charles recently attended a United for Immigrant Justice 

meeting where Director Espinoza shared her experience as a person of color serving on a school board. 
Director Farr commented that the Board has been cautious to refrain from speaking on behalf of the 
Board.  

B. Director Charles shared that he and Director Farr recently attended the TransPonder Annual Gala. 
C. Chair Zygaitis commented that she and her student volunteered at Cascade’s recent community service 

event. 
D. Vice Chair Clark shared that he recently attended a District professional development training on artificial 

intelligence in the classroom.  
E. Director Farr reported that a number of Board members attended the No Place for Hate kickoff event at 

Willamette. 
F. The Board commented on the recent Bethel Education Foundation Breakfast at Bethel and the amazing 

tribute to Director Jorgensen and his wife Karen as the BEF Community Spirit Award winners for 2023.  
 
Superintendent Sproles reminded Board members that this year’s first Bagels with the Board event will take 
place at Clear Lake on November 3rd beginning at 7:30 a.m. 

 
REVIEW OF NEXT MEETING:  MONDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2023 – DISTRICT OFFICE 
A. Student Representative Reports:  KHS and WHS 
B.     Financial Statement:  Andrea Belz 
C.     Superintendent’s Update 
D. Board Policies up for periodic review 

  



MINUTES  
BETHEL SCHOOL DISTRICT #52  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OCTOBER 23, 2023 

6 of 6  
  

ADJOURNMENT  
There being no further business to bring before the Board, Chair Zygaitis adjourned the meeting at 9:18 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________  ___________________________________  
Clerk – Kraig Sproles 
jcb 

Chair – Robin Zygaitis 

 



Bethel School District GENERAL FUND better than forecast
Revenue and Expenditure Report (unaudited) within 2% of forecast

Fiscal Year 2024 Within 2% - 4% of forecast

Over 4% of forecast

Future Months Preliminary
Actuals To Projected To 2023-2024 2023-2024 Budget

November 2023 June 2024 Totals ADOPTED BUDGET Variance

R E V E N U E S
LOCAL SOURCES:
Property Taxes 12,125,901 7,016,099 19,142,000 19,142,000 0
Tuition from other districts 0 500 500 500 0
Investment earnings 401,484 398,516 800,000 800,000 0
Misc. local sources 24,321 119,679 144,000 144,000 0

_____________ ___________ ______________ _______________ __________
Subtotal 12,551,706 7,534,794 20,086,500 20,086,500 0

INTERMEDIATE SOURCES:
County School Fund 0 100,000 100,000 100,000 0
Heavy Equipment Tax 0 20,000 20,000 20,000 0

_____________ ___________ ______________ _______________ __________
Subtotal 0 120,000 120,000 120,000 0

STATE SOURCES:
State School Fund 21,518,897 21,205,108 42,724,005 40,910,000 1,814,005
Common School Fund 0 681,310 681,310 800,414 (119,104)
High Cost Disability 0 445,000 445,000 445,000 0

_____________ ___________ _______________________________ __________
Subtotal 21,518,897 22,331,419 43,850,315 42,155,414 1,694,901

FEDERAL SOURCES:
Federal Forest Fees 0 0 0 0 0

_____________ ___________ _____________ _______________ __________
Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0

OTHER RESOURCES:
Interfund Transfers In 50,000 0 50,000 0 50,000
Sale of or Comp for loss of asset 0 0 0 0 0

_____________ ___________ ______________ _______________ __________
Subtotal 50,000 0 50,000 0 50,000

Total, monthly revenues 34,120,603 29,986,213 64,106,815 62,361,914 1,744,901

 E X P E N D I T U R E S
Salaries 10,100,858 23,753,661 33,854,519 33,854,519 0
Employee payroll costs & benefits 6,294,661 15,481,001 21,775,662 21,775,662 0
Purchased services 1,745,908 3,885,768 5,631,676 5,631,676 0
Supplies 609,630 1,461,686 2,071,316 2,071,316 0
Capital outlay 52,173 197,827 250,000 250,000 0
Insurance/Dues/Other 821,513 143,278 964,791 964,791 0
Interfund Transfers 155,269 1,308,681 1,463,950 1,463,950 0
Contingency 0 0 0 0 0

_________________________ ______________ _______________ __________
Total, monthly expend. 19,780,011 46,231,903 66,011,914 66,011,914 0

Operating Income / (Deficit) (1,905,099)      (3,650,000)            

11,650,000 9,650,000

Operating Income / (Deficit) (1,905,099) (3,650,000)

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 9,744,901 6,000,000

14.76%Ending Fund Balance as Percentage of Expenditures

Beginning Fund Balance (unaudited)



This page intentionally left blank. 



  
  

 
   4640 Barger Drive    Eugene, OR 97402    Phone: (541) 689-3280     
   Fax: (541) 689-0719    www.bethel.k12.or.us 

  
 

 
 
 
 

December 11, 2023     RESOLUTION NO. 23-24: 15 
 
RESOLUTION:  CONSENT AGENDA/PERSONNEL ACTION 
 
The Board of Directors, School District No. 52, Lane County, approves personnel action involving licensed employees and 

extra duty contracts at each regularly scheduled School Board meeting. If the Board of Directors would like to discuss any of 

these recommendations in executive session, the employee should be identified by the number preceding the name and it 

will be withdrawn pending further instruction from the Board. Remie Calalang is available for questions.  

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the School Board approve the Consent Agenda as reflected in this resolution and any addendum 

presented along with this resolution. 

 

# Name Type Description 
1. Clarke, Beth Resignation Accept resignation effective 11/24/2023; position 

held: ELD Teacher @Malabon; 1+ years at Bethel. 
2. Courogen, Deanna Temporary Hire for 2023-24 Offer Temporary Contract for 1.0 FTE ELD Teacher 

@Malabon; Start Date: 11/27/2023. 
3. Doty, Peggy Additional Temporary Hours for 

2023-24 
Offer Temporary Contract for additional .17 FTE Title 
Teacher @Prairie Mountain; total: 1.0 FTE. 

4. Greene, Juliauna Resignation Accept resignation effective December 15, 2023; 
position held: 4th Grade Teacher @Fairfield; 6+ years 
at Bethel. 

5. Guldager, Christine Resignation/Retirement/Rehire Accept resignation effective 11/30/2023 to enter 
retirement. Offer Temporary 1.0 FTE Contract from 
12/1/2023 through the end of the 2023-24 school 
year; position held: Math Teacher @Willamette; 20 
years at Bethel. 

6. McCabe, Rob Additional Temporary Hours for 
2023-24 

Offer Temporary Contract for .17 FTE Zero Period 
Jazz Band Teacher @Meadow View. 

7. Rico, Jackie Resignation Accept resignation effective the end of the 2023-24 
school year; position held: School Psychologist 
@District Office; 1 year at Bethel. 

8. Stanley, Eric Resignation Accept resignation effective 12/15/2023; position 
held: Qualified Mental Health Provider @Meadow 
View; 4 months at Bethel. 

9. White, Andrew Resignation Accept resignation effective immediately; position 
held: Resource Teacher @Cascade; 3 years at Bethel. 

10. White, Casey Hire for 2023-24 Offer Extra Duty Contract for Middle School Athletics 
and Activities Coordinator @Meadow View; start 
date: 12/3/2023. 

11. Wright, Eric Hire for 2023-24 Offer Extra Duty Contract for Middle School Athletics 
and Activities Coordinator @Meadow View; start 
date: 12/4/2023. 

http://www.bethel.k12.or.us/


  
  

Recommended by:  Remie Calalang, Assistant Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST _______________________________                                       ____________________________________ 
                          Clerk – Kraig Sproles                                                                            Chair – Robin Zygaitis 
                          

 
MOVED BY _________________________________                          

 BOARD MEMBERS AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT 

  Drae Charles      
SECONDED BY ______________________________                            Debi Farr      
  Ashley Espinoza     
 DATE _____________________________________                          Paul Jorgensen     
  Caleb Clark     
 RESOLUTION:             Passed    /     Failed  Curt Nordling     
  Robin Zygaitis     

 



 
   4640 Barger Drive    Eugene, OR 97402    Phone: (541) 689-3280     
   Fax: (541) 689-0719    www.bethel.k12.or.us 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

December 11, 2023              RESOLUTION NO. 23-24: 16 
 

Relevant Data: 
Between November 15, 2023 and December 15, 2023, School Boards across the state may take official 
action on Oregon School Boards Association Board Positions. 
 
Elections: 
OSBA Board of Directors Position 6:  
Linda Hamilton, Lane ESD  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of Lane County School District No. 52 hereby APPROVES / OPPOSES 
/ ABSTAINS. 
 
It is further recommended that the Board direct the Superintendent or designee to submit this vote to 
OSBA no later than 5:00 p.m. on December 15, 2023.  
 

   
 

 

 

 

  

ATTEST       
                              Clerk – Kraig Sproles                                           Chair – Robin Zygaitis 
 
                         
MOVED BY  ________________________________________               BOARD MEMBERS AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT 
  Debi Farr     
SECONDED BY _____________________________________  Ashley Espinoza     
  Paul Jorgensen     
 DATE ______________________________________________  Caleb Clark     
  Drae Charles     
 RESOLUTION:             Passed    /     Failed  Robin Zygaitis     
  Curt Nordling     
 

http://www.bethel.k12.or.us/


This page intentionally left blank. 



 
   4640 Barger Drive    Eugene, OR 97402    Phone: (541) 689-3280     
   Fax: (541) 689-0719    www.bethel.k12.or.us 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

December 11, 2023              RESOLUTION NO. 23-24: 17 
 

Relevant Data: 
Between November 15, 2023 and December 15, 2023, School Boards across the state may take official 
action on Oregon School Boards Association Legislative Policy Committee Positions. 
 
Elections: 
OSBA Legislative Policy Committee Position 6:   
Judy Newman, Eugene 4J 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of Lane County School District No. 52 hereby APPROVES / OPPOSES 
/ ABSTAINS. 
 
It is further recommended that the Board direct the Superintendent or designee to submit this vote to 
OSBA no later than 5 p.m. on December 15, 2023.  
 

  
 

 

 

 

  

ATTEST       
                              Clerk – Kraig Sproles                                           Chair – Robin Zygaitis 
 
                         
MOVED BY  ________________________________________               BOARD MEMBERS AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT 
  Debi Farr     
SECONDED BY _____________________________________  Ashley Espinoza     
  Paul Jorgensen     
 DATE ______________________________________________  Caleb Clark     
  Drae Charles     
 RESOLUTION:             Passed    /     Failed  Robin Zygaitis     
  Curt Nordling     
 

http://www.bethel.k12.or.us/


This page intentionally left blank. 



 
   4640 Barger Drive    Eugene, OR 97402    Phone: (541) 689-3280     
   Fax: (541) 689-0719    www.bethel.k12.or.us 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

December 11, 2023              RESOLUTION NO. 23-24: 18 
 

Relevant Data: 
Between November 15, 2023 and December 15, 2023, School Boards across the state may take official 
action on Oregon School Boards Association Resolutions: 
 
Resolution: 
Create the Oregon Rural School Board Members Caucus and designate a seat on the OSBA Board of 
Directors and Legislative Policy Committee.  
  
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of Lane County School District No. 52 hereby ADOPTS / OPPOSES / 
ABSTAINS. 
 
It is further recommended that the Board direct the Superintendent or designee to submit this vote to 
OSBA no later than 5:00 p.m. on December 15, 2023.  
 

    
    
 

 

 

 

 

  

ATTEST       
                           Clerk – Kraig Sproles                                            Chair – Robin Zygaitis 
                         
MOVED BY  ________________________________________               BOARD MEMBERS AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT 
  Debi Farr     
SECONDED BY _____________________________________  Ashley Espinoza     
  Paul Jorgensen     
 DATE ______________________________________________  Caleb Clark     
  Drae Charles     
 RESOLUTION:             Passed    /     Failed  Robin Zygaitis     
  Curt Nordling     
 

http://www.bethel.k12.or.us/


This page intentionally left blank. 



 
   4640 Barger Drive    Eugene, OR 97402    Phone: (541) 689-3280     
   Fax: (541) 689-0719    www.bethel.k12.or.us 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

December 11, 2023              RESOLUTION NO. 23-24: 19 
 

Relevant Data: 
Between November 15, 2023 and December 15, 2023, School Boards across the state may take official 
action on Oregon School Boards Association Resolutions: 
 
Resolution 2: 
Adopt the proposed amendments to the OSBA Bylaws.  
  
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of Lane County School District No. 52 hereby ADOPTS / OPPOSES / 
ABSTAINS. 
 
It is further recommended that the Board direct the Superintendent or designee to submit this vote to 
OSBA no later than 5:00 p.m. on December 15, 2023.  
 

    
    
 

 

 

 

 

  

ATTEST       
                           Clerk – Kraig Sproles                                            Chair – Robin Zygaitis 
 
                         
MOVED BY  ________________________________________               BOARD MEMBERS AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT 
  Debi Farr     
SECONDED BY _____________________________________  Ashley Espinoza     
  Paul Jorgensen     
 DATE ______________________________________________  Caleb Clark     
  Drae Charles     
 RESOLUTION:             Passed    /     Failed  Robin Zygaitis     
  Curt Nordling     
 

http://www.bethel.k12.or.us/

	12-11-2023 Agenda
	BETHEL SCHOOL BOARD MEETING

	Board Minutes 10-23-2023 FINAL
	The October 23, 2023 meeting of the Board of Directors was held in the Media Center at Malabon Elementary School and was remotely accessible via Zoom Webinar.
	ATTENDANCE
	CONSENT AGENDA
	Resolution No. 11 – Personnel Action
	Resolution No. 12 – Adopt Policy GCL
	Motion:  Caleb Clark moved, Paul Jorgensen seconded, to adopt the following Board Policy:
	Resolution No. 13 – Adopt 2023-2024 Supplemental Budget
	Motion:  Curt Nordling moved, Ashley Espinoza seconded, to adopt the supplemental budget for the 2023-2024 fiscal year. (See Resolution No. 23-24: 13 for details.)
	Absent:  None

	INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION
	ADJOURNMENT

	November 2023 Financial Statement
	2023-24

	blank
	Resolution 15 - Consent Agenda
	December 11, 2023     RESOLUTION NO. 23-24: 15
	ATTEST _______________________________                                       ____________________________________


	Resolution 16 - OSBA Board Position 6
	December 11, 2023              RESOLUTION NO. 23-24: 16
	ATTEST


	blank
	Nomination Form - Linda Hamilton
	blank
	OSBA Board - Candidate Questionnaire - Linda Hamilton
	blank
	Resolution 17 - OSBA LPC Position 6
	December 11, 2023              RESOLUTION NO. 23-24: 17
	ATTEST


	blank
	Nomination Form - Judy Newman 1 word
	NOMINATION FORM
	This nomination was approved by official action of our board of directors at a duly called meeting on


	blank
	Legislative Policy Committee - Judy Newman
	Signed LPC Application 2023
	LPC Application Answers 2023
	LPCPosition6NewmanDataSheet
	Lane County Youth Development Commission Professional Task Force was an advisory group to a citizen Commission on Children and Families in Lane County which was established to develop and implement a plan for a comprehensive system of supports and ser...


	blank
	Resolution 18 - OSBA Resolution 1
	December 11, 2023              RESOLUTION NO. 23-24: 18
	ATTEST


	blank
	Resolution 1 - RuralCaucusVotingStatusOSBABoard
	Resolution 1 - Rural Caucus Voting Status on OSBA Board as ammended
	Rural Advisory Bylaws - 20231005

	Resolution 19 - OSBA Resolution 2
	December 11, 2023              RESOLUTION NO. 23-24: 19
	ATTEST


	blank
	Resolution 2 - AmendmentsToTheOSBABylaws
	Resolution 2 - 2023 Amendments to Bylaws
	 Adding parameters for the eligibility of an OSBA Director to hold an officer position.

	II.A.2. OSBA Bylaws - Suggested Revisions 6-2-23
	SECTION 1   PURPOSE
	The Oregon School Boards Association (the “Association”) exists solely to perform essential governmental functions and all of its income accrues to the State of Oregon or its political subdivisions as required under IRC Section 115.  In particular, th...
	A. To work for the general advancement and improvement of the education of all public school children of the State of Oregon.
	B. To gather and disseminate information pertinent to the successful operation of public schools.
	C. To work for the most efficient and effective organization of public schools of this state.  “Public schools” include local school districts, education service districts, the State Board of Education and community colleges classified as a political ...
	D. To work for adequate and dependable financial support for the public schools of this state.
	E. To study all legislation which affects the public schools of Oregon and to support and work for that which appears to be desirable and to keep members informed thereof. To propose and work for the enactment of proper educational legislation.
	F. To encourage the establishment and maintenance of best practices and high standards in the conduct and operation of the public school educational system.
	G. To study and interpret educational programs and to relate them to the needs of pupils.
	H. To promote public understanding of the role of school boards and school board members in the improvement of education.
	I. To conduct seminars, conferences, and research projects in the various aspects of education for the benefit of members.
	J. To endeavor to implement the policies, beliefs and resolutions of the Association members and board of directors.
	K. To do such other things as the member boards or board of directors may deem appropriate for the accomplishment of these and other purposes which tend to improve public education.
	L. To enter into such cooperative agreement with members for the pooling of resources and the provision of services as may result in the more efficient utilization of district resources and accrue to their financial advantage.

	SECTION 2   MEMBERS
	2.1 Admission.  All members must qualify as (1) a “political subdivision” as defined under Treas Reg § 1.103-1(b) and Revenue Ruling 78-276, 1978-2 CB 256 and (2) as one of the following:
	2.1.1 Local School District as defined under ORS Chapter 332;
	2.1.2 Education Service District as defined under ORS Chapter 334;
	2.1.3 Community College District as defined under ORS Chapter 341;
	2.1.4 State Board of Education as defined under ORS Chapter 326; and
	2.1.5 Any other governmental educational organization qualifying as a political subdivision, as approved by resolution of the board of directors.

	2.2 Dues.  Annual dues shall be set by majority vote of the members and shall be based on resident Average Daily Membership (ADMr) as of December 31 of the preceding year as reported to the Oregon Department of Education.  Dues shall be payable on Jul...
	2.3 Reserved Powers of the Members.  The following corporate actions require the consent and approval of the members:
	2.3.1 Election and removal of directors;
	2.3.2 Election and removal of the Legislative Policy Committee (“LPC”) members;
	2.3.3 Approval of resolutions to effectuate any of the following:
	(a) Adoption, amendment, or restatement of the articles of incorporation or bylaws;
	(b) Modification to the region descriptions set forth in Section 2.6.1; and the
	(c) Dissolution, merger, or the sale, pledge, or transfer of all or substantially all of the Association’s assets.


	2.4 Voting Power.
	2.4.1 Election of Directors and LPC Members.  For the purposes of nominating and electing directors and LPC members, each member shall have one vote.
	2.4.2 Resolution.  For the purposes of approving a resolution, each member shall have one vote on all resolutions except as follows:
	(a) K-12 Local Districts with an ADMr between 15,600 and 23,400 shall have two votes.
	(b) K-12 Local Districts with an ADMr between 23,400.1 and 31,200 shall have three votes.
	(c) K-12 Local Districts with an ADMr between 31,200.1 and 39,000 shall have four votes.
	(d) K-12 Local Districts with an ADMr between of 39,000.1 and aboveor more shall have five votes.


	2.5 Process of Approval of Member Resolutions.
	2.5.1 Generally, members shall approve resolutions annually by ballot vote. Members or the board of directors may submit a resolution for member approval. Such resolutions shall be submitted to the board of directors no later than September 30th.  The...
	2.5.2 The board of directors may call a special meeting of the members under Section 2.9, as necessary.

	2.6 Regional Election of Directors and LPC Members
	2.6.1 Regional Voting.  For the purposes of nominating and electing the board of directors and LPC members, the Association members shall be organized into and represented by region:
	(a) Eastern Region includes all of the members located in the counties of Baker, Grant, Malheur, Union, Wallowa, and Wheeler.
	(b) Gorge Region includes all of the members located in the counties of Gilliam, Morrow, Sherman, Umatilla, and Wasco.
	(c) Central Region includes all of the members located in the counties of Crook, Deschutes, and Jefferson.
	(d) Southeast Region includes all of the members located in the counties of Harney, Klamath, and Lake.
	(e) Southern Region includes all of the members located in the counties of Jackson and Josephine.
	(f) Lane Region includes all of the members located in the county of Lane.
	(g) Clackamas Region includes all of the members located in the county of Clackamas and Hood River.
	(h) Douglas/South Coast Region includes all of the members located in the counties of Coos, Curry, and Douglas.
	(i) Linn, Benton, Lincoln Region includes all of the members located in the counties of Benton, Lincoln, and Linn.
	(j) Marion Region includes all of the members located in the county of Marion.
	(k) Yamhill, Polk Region includes all of the members located in the counties of Polk and Yamhill.
	(l) North Coast Region includes all of the members located in the counties of Clatsop, Columbia, and Tillamook.
	(m) Washington Region includes all of the members located in the county of Washington.
	(n) Multnomah Region includes all of the members located in the county of Multnomah.

	2.6.2 Regional elections shall be taken by majority vote of the members within the region.

	2.7 Modification of Regions.  A formal review of the regional organizations described in Section 2.6.1 shall be conducted by the board of directors at least every three years commencing with 2017.  Any recommended changes to the regional organization ...
	2.8 Annual Meetings.  An annual meeting of members shall be held in November of each year unless a different date or time is fixed by the board of directors and stated in the notice of the meeting.  Failure to hold an annual meeting on the stated date...
	2.9 Special Meetings.  A special meeting of members shall be held upon the call of the president or 25 percent of the board of directors.  All members shall be officially notified of a special meeting by written notice, mailed via U.S. mail or electro...
	2.10 Telephonic/Video Meetings.  The board of directors may permit any member to participate in an annual or special meeting, or conduct the meetings through, use of any means of communication by which all persons participating may simultaneously hear...
	2.11 Place of Meetings.  Meetings of the members shall be held at any place in or out of Oregon designated by the board of directors.  If a meeting place is not designated by the board of directors, the meeting shall be held at the Association’s princ...
	2.12 Action by Written Ballot.  Any action required of the members will be taken by written ballot and or permitted to be taken at a members’ meeting may be taken without a meeting if the Association will delivers a written ballot to every member enti...
	1.1 Unanimous Written Consent.  Any action required or permitted to be taken at a members’ meeting may be taken without a meeting if the action is taken by all members entitled to vote on the matter.  The action shall be evidenced by one or more writt...
	2.13 Quorum and Voting.  A quorum of the members shall consist of those votes represented at a meeting of the members. If a quorum is present when a vote is taken, the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes represented and voting when the action ...

	SECTION 3   DIRECTORS
	3.1 Powers.  Except as provided under Section 2.2, all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the authority of and the affairs of, are managed under the direction of a the board of directors.  The board of directors shall adopt policies defin...
	3.2 Qualifications.  Directors must serve on the board of a member of the Association throughout the duration of their term, with the exception of the director serving as past president.
	3.3 Number.  The board of directors shall consist of not fewer than three nor more than 24 25 persons.  The number of directors may be fixed or changed periodically, within the minimum, and maximum by the members.
	3.4 Term.  Directors shall take office on January 1 and shall serve for a term of two calendar years or until their successors are elected and qualified.  Terms shall be staggered as per the election calendar.
	3.4.1 Directors who took office prior to January 1, 2018, and are re-elected may serve for any number of terms as long as they continuously remain members of the board of directors.
	3.4.2 Directors taking office on or after January 1, 2018, may serve five consecutive two-year terms and, if eligible, may rerun after a two-year hiatus.
	3.4.3 If a director serving as immediate past an officerpresident requires additional time beyond the term limits outlined above, the term limits will be held in abeyance to allow the director to complete their term as immediate past president.

	3.5 Composition.  The board of directors will be comprised of up to 23 regionally elected directors, one designated director as defined in the bylaws of the Oregon School Board Members of Color Caucus, one designated director as defined in the bylaws ...
	3.5.1 Regional Elected Directors. Each region, as described under Section 2.6.1, shall elect one director except as follows:
	(a) Clackamas Region shall elect two directors;
	(b) Marion Region shall elect two directors;
	(c) Washington Region shall elect three directors; and
	(d) Multnomah Region shall elect three directors.
	(e) Provided, however, that if the president or immediate past president of the board of directors is a representative director from a region that elects only one director, that region shall elect an additional director or directors to serve for the d...

	3.5.2 Regional Election.  The nomination and election of directors shall be in accordance with the elections calendar annually adopted by the board.  Each regional candidate for a director position shall be nominated by a member within the region by m...
	3.5.3 Designated Representatives.  In accordance with their bylaws, caucuses of OSBA, The Oregon School Board Members of Color Caucus shall appoint an officer a representative of the Caucus to serve as a director of the Association.  The appointee, as...
	3.5.4 Ex-Officio.  The following individuals or their designee may serve as ex-officio nonvoting advisors to the board of directors:
	(a) Any director of the National School Boards Association elected from Oregon;
	(b) Any officer of the National School Boards Association, National School Boards Advocacy Committee, or an officer of the NSBA Pacific Region.
	(c) The immediate past president of the Oregon Association of School Executives;
	(d) The immediate past president of the Confederation of School Administrators;
	(e) The board section president of the Oregon Association of Education Service Districts;
	(f) The board section president of the Oregon Community College Association;
	(g) The chair of the State Board of Education; and
	(h) Any other person as the board of directors may appoint.


	3.6 Vacancies.  In the event that any director position, other than the immediate past president is vacant during the term of office, the remaining directors may appoint an interim director from the same region to serve until December 31 of the same y...
	3.7 Resignation.  A director may resign at any time by delivering written notice to the president or the secretary.  A resignation is effective when notice is effective under ORS 65.034 unless the notice specifies a later effective date.  Once deliver...
	3.8 Removal.  A director may be removed for cause by vote of two-thirds majority of the directors.  A director may be removed with or without cause by a majority vote of the members who elected the director.  The board may provide guidance or adopt an...
	3.9 Meetings.  An annual meeting of the board of directors shall be held immediately after, and at the same place as, the annual meeting of members.  If the time and place of any other directors’ meeting is regularly scheduled by the board of director...
	3.10 Notice of Meetings.  All members shall be officially notified of a special meeting by written notice delivered personally, by telephone or electronic mail to all directors at least 48 hours prior to the date of the meeting.  Such notice shall inc...
	3.11 Waiver of Notice.  A director may at any time waive any notice required by these bylaws.  A director’s attendance at or participation in a meeting waives any required notice to the director of the meeting unless the director, at the beginning of ...
	3.12 Quorum and Voting.  A quorum of the board of directors shall consist of a majority of the number of directors in office immediately before at the time the meeting begins.  If a quorum is present when a vote is taken, the affirmative vote of a maj...
	3.13 Voting: If a quorum is present when a vote is taken, the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors present when the action is taken is the act of the board of directors except to the extent that the articles of incorporation, these bylaws, ...
	3.14 Presumption of Assent.  A director who is present at a meeting of the board of directors when corporate action is taken is deemed to have assented to the action taken unless:
	(a) The director objects at the beginning of the meeting, or promptly upon the director’s arrival, to holding the meeting or transacting the business at the meeting; and
	(b) The director’s dissent from the action taken is entered in the minutes of the meeting.

	3.15 Compensation.  Directors and members of committees may receive reimbursement of such expenses as may be determined by resolution or policy of the board of directors to be just and reasonable.  Directors shall not otherwise be compensated for serv...
	3.16 Director Conflict of Interest.  The Association shall maintain a Conflict of Interest policy the terms of which comply with ORS 65.361 and ORS Chapter 244.  The board of directors shall annually review and notify its members and directors of the ...

	SECTION 4   COMMITTEES AND CAUCUSES
	4.1 Standing Committees.  The board of directors shall maintain the standing committees described below:
	4.1.1 Executive Committee.  The executive committee shall consist of five officers of the board of directors: the president as chairman, the president-elect, the vice president, the secretary-treasurer and the immediate past president.  The executive ...
	4.1.2 Finance Committee.  The finance committee shall be appointed by the president and shall be composed of members from Oregon public school districts, education service districts, and community colleges with boards that meet all criteria to be Asso...
	(a) Finance committee members serve for a term of two (2) years unless they are appointed to replace a member who left the committee before finishing their two- year term, in which case the member will serve the remainder of the two-year term.
	(b) The finance committee shall operate within the guidelines of the corporation’s investment policyguidelines and the Finance Committee oOperating ManualgGuidelines.

	4.1.3 Legislative Policy Committee.  The board of directors shall maintain a Legislative Policy Committee (LPC).
	(a) Purpose.  The LPC shall develop legislative policies which are recommended to and approved by the members as a resolution proposed by the board of directors and voted on by the membership in accordance with Section 2.4.  The LPC also advises the e...
	(b) Composition.  The LPC shall be composed of the voting members of the board of directors and the regional representatives elected under the procedures defined in 4.1.3(c) and (d) and one designated voting member as defined in the bylaws orf the Ore...
	(c) Nomination.  The board of directors shall cause the nomination form to be distributed to all members in eligible regions.  A member may nominate a candidate to the LPC and shall do so by formal resolution of the member and timely submission of the...
	(d) Election.  Each LPC member shall be elected by majority of member boards of a region.  Each region shall elect the number of LPC members as described in Section 3.5, without regard to Section 3.5.1(d).  Such elections shall be held using the proce...
	Term.  Each committee member shall take office on January 1 in even numbered years and serve for a term of two (2) years.
	Vacancies.  In the event that there is a vacancy on the LPC, the board of directors may appoint an interim LPC member from the same region to fill the unexpired term of office. If the board of directors cannot recruit an LPC member from the region, th...
	4.1.4 PACE Trustees:  The board of directors shall appoint the trustees of the OSBA Property and Casualty Coverage for Education Trust (“PACE”).  As per the PACE bylawsRestated Trust Agreement, the PACE trustees shall nominate trustee candidate(s) to ...


	4.2 Other Board Committees.  The board of directors may create one or more committees of the board of directors and appoint directors and representatives of members to serve on such committee.  The creation of a committee and the appointment of direct...
	(a) Authorize distributions, provided that this restriction does not apply to payment of value for property received or services performed or payment of benefits in furtherance of the Association’s purposes;
	(b) Approve or recommend dissolution, merger, or the sale, pledge, or transfer of all or substantially all of the Association’s assets;
	(c) Elect, appoint, or remove directors or fill vacancies on the board or on any of its committees; or
	(d) Adopt, amend, or repeal the articles of incorporation or bylaws.

	4.3 Advisory Committees.  The board of directors may create one or more other committees.  Members of these committees need not be members or directors, but at least one director shall serve on each such committee.  These committees shall have no powe...
	4.4 Caucuses.  Caucuses shall exist to enhance the work of the Association by addressing the unique needs of member districts.  Caucuses shall:
	4.4.1 Clearly articulate the vision, mission and goals of the Caucus.
	4.4.2 Adopt bylaws for operating, programming and governing within the context of the Association bylaws described herein.
	4.4.3 Comply with Association policies and guidelines.
	4.4.4 Caucuses shall be added or eliminated to this provision through the amendment process described in these bylaws.
	4.4.5 With the adoption of this section, the The Oregon School Board Members of Color Caucus is was established by a vote of the membership in 2018.

	4.5 Administration.  Each committee and caucus shall prepare minutes of each of its meetings, and such minutes shall be kept on file at the Association’s principal office and made available on request to any member of the board of directors.  Each com...

	SECTION 5   OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	5.1 Appointment.  The board of directors shall elect officers by majority vote at least 10 days prior to the November member meeting.  In cases where there are more than two candidates nominated for any position, and none receives a majority of the vo...
	5.2 Designation.  The officers of the Association shall be a president, president-elect, past president, vice president, a secretary-treasurer, and such other officers as the board of directors may appoint.
	5.3 Eligibility:  To hold an officer position on the Board of Directors, candidates must be an elected or appointed regional director from the region where they serve.
	5.4 Compensation and Term of Office.  Officer terms are one calendar year.  No officer except the secretary-treasurer shall serve two consecutive terms in the same office unless the director completed a term for another officer who was unable to compl...
	5.5 Removal and Resignation.  Any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, at any time by action of the board of directors.  An officer may resign at any time by delivering notice to the board of directors, the president, or the secretary...
	5.6 Officers.  The officers of the Association are as follows:
	5.6.1 President:  The president shall preside at all member meetings of the Association and of the board of directors; shall appoint, committees subject to the approval of the board of directors; shall call all regular and special meetings as provided...
	5.6.2 President-elect:  In the absence of the president, the president-elect shall assume the powers and duties of the president, and when a vacancy occurs in the office of president, shall serve in that capacity for the remainder of the term.  The pr...
	5.6.3 Vice president: In the absence of the president-elect shall assume the powers and duties of the president-elect.  The vice president shall also serve as the chair of the LPC. The vice president serves for one calendar year.
	5.6.4 Secretary-treasurer:  The secretary-treasurer shall be responsible for keeping in a suitable minute book accurate minutes of all board of director meetings; shall carry on official correspondence of the Association; shall arrange for proper bank...
	5.6.5 Immediate past president:  The immediate past president shall advise and counsel with other officers. The immediate past president chairs the officer succession planning process.  The past president serves for one calendar year.
	5.6.6 Assistants:  The board of directors may appoint or authorize the appointment of an assistant to the secretary-treasurer.  Such assistant may exercise the powers of the secretary-treasurer, as the case may be, and shall perform such duties as are...


	SECTION 6   NONDISCRIMINATION
	SECTION 7   GENERAL PROVISIONS
	7.1 Amendment of Bylaws.
	7.1.1 Amendments to the bylaws may be initiated by the board of directors or submitted by a member to the board of directors.  Amendments must be approved by a vote of two-thirds majority of the members at any regular or special meeting.  The board of...
	7.1.2 The board of directors shall provide written notice to the members containing a statement that the members will be asked to approve the amendment and a copy of the proposed amended bylaws.
	7.1.3 Action by Written Ballot:  The Association will deliver a written ballot to every member entitled to vote on the matter.  The ballot shall set forth each proposed action and provide an opportunity to vote for or against each proposed action and ...
	7.1.4 Approval:  Approval by written ballot shall be valid only when the number of votes cast by ballot equals or exceeds a quorum of the members, and the number of approvals equals or exceeds two-thirds majority of the number of the returned ballots.
	7.1.5 Quorum:  A quorum of the members shall consist of a majority of members in good standing at the time the ballots are to be returned to the Association.
	7.1.6 Whenever an amendment or new bylaw is adopted, it shall be copied in the minute book with the original bylaws in the appropriate place.  If any bylaw is repealed, the fact of repeal and the date on which the repeal occurred shall be stated in su...

	7.2 Inspection of Books and Records.  All books, records, and accounts of the Association shall be open to inspection by the directors in the manner and to the extent required by law.
	7.3 Checks, Drafts, Etc.  All checks, drafts, and other orders for payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of or payable to the Association shall be signed or endorsed by such person or persons and in such manner...
	7.4 Deposits.  All funds of the Association not otherwise employed shall be deposited to the credit of the Association in those banks, trust companies or other depositories as the board of directors or officers of the Association designated by the boa...
	7.5 Loans or Guarantees.  The Association shall not borrow money and no evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by the board of directors.  This authority may be general or confined to specific instances.  Except as expl...
	7.6 Execution of Documents.  The board of directors may, except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, authorize any officer or agent to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Association.  Such authority...
	7.7 Insurance.  The Association may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of an individual against liability asserted against or incurred by the individual who is or was a director, officer, employee, or agent of the Association, or who, while a d...
	7.8 Fiscal Year.  The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day of July 1 and end on the last day of June in each year.
	7.9 Severability.  A determination that any provision of these bylaws is for any reason inapplicable, invalid, illegal or otherwise ineffective shall not affect or invalidate any other provision of these bylaws.



	blank
	OSBA Bylaws Crosswalk



